
AGENDA 
 

CANFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING 

     August 13, 2025-5:30 P.M. 
 

FRANCIS J. McLAUGHLIN MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
 
 
1. Call to Order. 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
3. Roll Call:  Quorum is Present - Meeting is in Session. 
 
4. Proclamations & Presentations.  Tom Bellish-Buckeye Energy  
      
5. Approval of Minutes. 
 
6. Reading of Communications. 
 
7. Reports of Committees, Boards, Mayor’s Report, City Manager, Finance Director, Chief of Police, 

Zoning Inspector and Public Works Superintendent. 
 
8. Public questions from residents (or representative) related to the above referenced reports. Questions 

may be limited to three (3) minutes. 
 
9. Recognition of Persons Desiring to Appear Before Council. 
 
10.  OLD BUSINESS 
  Note: After each item is placed on the table for action, public comments from residents (or 

representative) as to that business item are received.  May be limited to three (3) minutes per person 
and thirty (30) minutes total. 

 
 
11. NEW BUSINESS 

Note: After each item is placed on the table for action, public comments from residents (or 
representative) as to that business item are received.  May be limited to three (3) minutes per person 
and thirty (30) minutes total. 

 
A. An Ordinance Authorizing and Directing the City of Canfield to Enter Into An 

Agreement with Buckeye Energy Brokers, Inc for Aggregation Consulting Services and 
Any Other Required Service Related to Natural Gas Utility Deregulation, Ratifying Any 
Such Services Heretofore Performed and Declaring an Emergency.  
 

Description: Buckeye Energy is our current broker for gas and electric.  Their 

contact is set to expire on September 30, 2025.. Mr. Tom Bellish (Buckeye 

Energy Brokers) is requesting to continue to provide consulting service related to 

the City of Canfield’s energy aggregation program for natural gas. This is a 4-

year agreement to continue to provide consulting service related to the City of 

Canfield’s energy aggregation program for natural gas.  

 

Action Needed: Passage of this Ordinance  

 

Attachment(s):  Agreement for Natural Gas Aggregation Services  

 

Public Comments 

 

B. An Ordinance Authorizing Entering into an Agreement Between the City of 

Canfield and IGS Energy for an (Opt-Out) Natural Gas Aggregation Program and 

Declaring an Emergency.  

 



Description: The current gas aggregation with IGS Energy for the City of 

Canfield’s natural gas aggregation program is set to expire in September of 2025. 

Buckeye Energy Brokers (Tom Bellish) on behalf of the City of Canfield sent our 

requests for proposals to energy companies to provide natural gas aggregation 

program to the City of Canfield.  Mr. Bellish has provided a recommendation that 

the City of Canfield enter into a 24-month variable rate term with IGS Energy. 

Currently we are with IGS Energy at a fixed rate of .747/ccf.   

 

Action Needed: Passage of this Ordinance  

 

Attachment(s):   

 

Public Comments 

 

C. An Ordinance Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement for an 

Extra-Territorial Sewer and Water User (Joseph and Darlene MacBenn) Parcel 

Number 26-018-0-005.00-0 and 26-018-0-006.00-0. 

   

Description: The owner of 7185 and 7195 W. Akron-Canfield Road (Joseph and 

Darlene MacBenn) are requesting water & sewer utilities from the City of 

Canfield. This would make them an extra-territorial user.   

 

        Action Needed: Passage of this Ordinance.  

 

        Attachment(s):  Agreement for Extra-Territorial Water Service and drawing.  

 

   Public Comments.  

 

D. An Ordinance Declaring Surplus Property and Authorizing its Disposal.   

 

       Description: This item is a Kubota tractor that is no longer useful.   

 

      Action Needed: Passage of Ordinance to declare surplus. This item will be 

auctioned on our website.  

 

       Attachment(s):   

 

E. An Ordinance Amending Chapter 927 of the Codified Ordinances of Canfield, 

Ohio (Regarding Water Rates for 2025) 

 

Description: This will be an increase of 8.5% beginning October 1, 2025 with a 

12.75 quarterly Debt Service Fee.  

 

Action Needed: Passage of this Ordinance.  

 

Attachment(s): Explanation  

. 

12. Council Comments 

 

13. Adjournment 

 

 



Introduced by: ________________ 

First Reading: ________________ 

 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE CITY OF CANFIELD TO 

ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH BUCKEYE ENERGY BROKERS, INC. FOR 

AGGREGATION CONSULTING SERVICES AND ANY OTHER REQUIRED SERVICES 

RELATED TO NATURAL GAS UTILITY DEREGULATION, RATIFYING ANY SUCH 

SERVICES HERETOFORE PERFORMED AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Canfield, 

County of Mahoning and State of Ohio: 

 

 Section 1.  That the City Manger is hereby authorized and directed to enter into an 

agreement with Buckeye Energy Brokers, Inc. for aggregation consulting services and any 

other required services related to natural gas utility deregulation and ratifying any such 

services heretofore performed. 

 

 Section 2.  That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council 

concerning and relating to the adoption of this ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of 

this Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its committees that 

resulted in such formal action were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all 

legal requirements including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 

 

 Section 3. That this ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency measure 

necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health, safety, thereof, for the reason that it 

is immediately necessary to contract consulting services for advice in a rapidly changing 

technical area, and provided it receives the necessary affirmative votes as required by the 

passage and be in force at the earliest period allowed by law. 

 

 

PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS ___________DAY OF__________________A.D., 2025                    

 

      _____________________________ 

      PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL 

 

 

 

 

 



ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

CLERK OF COUNCIL  

 

CERTIFICATION OF PUBLICATION 

 

 I, the undersigned Clerk of Council of the City of Canfield, Ohio, hereby certify that 

the foregoing Ordinance was posted in a prominent place at the Municipal Building, Canfield, 

Ohio for seven continuous days, to-wit: __________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________. 

 

      _____________________ 

      CLERK OF COUNCIL 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

_______________________ 

MUNICIPAL ATTORNEY 

 











ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

CLERK OF COUNCIL  

 

CERTIFICATION OF PUBLICATION 

 

 I, the undersigned Clerk of Council of the City of Canfield, Ohio, hereby certify that 

the foregoing Ordinance was posted in a prominent place at the Municipal Building, Canfield, 

Ohio for seven continuous days, to-wit: __________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________. 

 

      _____________________ 

      CLERK OF COUNCIL 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

_______________________ 

MUNICIPAL ATTORNEY 

 



 Introduced by: _____________ 
First Reading: ______________ 

ORDINANCE 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING ENTERING INTO AN AGREEMENT 
 BETWEEN THE CITY OF CANFIELD AND IGS ENERGY FOR AN (OPT-OUT) 

 NATURAL GAS AGGREGATION PROGRAM AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY 

WHEREAS, the City of Canfield continues to be interested in reducing its overall energy costs 
by opt-out aggregation and aggregating its government owned natural gas accounts; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Agreement, IGS Energy has been designated the natural gas 
supplier for the City of Canfield’s Governmental Aggregation Program; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties have negotiated a variable rate with an adder.   The agreement will be 
a term of 24 months from October 1, 2025 to September 31, 2027; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CANFIELD: 

Section 1:  Term:  The Parties agree that the term of the Agreement shall be for 24 months, 
beginning October 1, 2025 through September 30, 2027. The rate will be variable with the 
New York Mercantile Exchange (NYMEX) price set the 15th day of the prior month.  Customers 
that join the aggregation program and then leave during the term of this service period will 
not be charged a termination fee.  

Section 2:  Price:  IGS Energy will deliver natural gas at a variable rate of NYMEX price for gas 
plus $.255 per hundred cubic feet (Ccf) until the city directs IGS Energy to fix any NYMEX 
futures contracts for the remaining term.   

Section 3:  Affirmation of Terms and Conditions: In all other respects, the Parties affirm the 
terms and conditions of the Agreement. 

Section 4: This Ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency measure necessary for the 
preservation of public peace, health and safety, of the inhabitants of the City of Canfield, 
Ohio. Said emergency exists by reason of time sensitive pricing. 

Section 5: That this Ordinance and all deliberations relating to the passage of this Ordinance 
were held in open meetings of this Council, all pursuant to Section 121.22 of the Ohio 
Revised Code and Section 3.11 of the Charter of the Municipality of Canfield.  

The Parties acknowledge their Agreement to the terms herein by their signatures below. 

PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS ____________DAY _____________OF______________A.D., 2025.__________  

PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL 

ATTEST: 

________________ 
CLERK OF COUNCIL 



 
 

Certification of Publication 
 

I, the undersigned Clerk of Council of the City of Canfield, Ohio, hereby certify that the 
foregoing Ordinance was posted in a prominent place at the Municipal Building, Canfield, 
Ohio for seven continuous days, to-wit: 
________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________
_. 
 
        _______________________ 
        CLERK OF COUNCIL  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_____________________ 
MUNICIPAL ATTORNEY 
 







Introduced by: ______________ 
First Reading: ________________ 
 

ORDINANCE 
 

AN ORDINANCE DECLARING SURPLUS PROPERTY 
AND AUTHORIZING ITS DISPOSAL  

 
 WHEREAS, the City Manager has recommended that certain vehicles are no longer 
needed by the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Council desires to declare the following vehicle surplus and dispose of it.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CANFIELD, OHIO: 
 
 Section 1:  The following vehicle and accessories are hereby declared surplus: 
 

G1800 Kubota Tractor Serial # 20075 

 
Section 2:  The City Manager is hereby authorized to dispose of the listed vehicle in 
accordance with the applicable City of Canfield Ordinances. 
 
Section 3:  That this Ordinance and all deliberations relating to the passage of this 
Ordinance were held in open meetings of this Council, all pursuant to Section 121.22 
of the Ohio Revised Code and Section 3.11 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 

PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS ________DAY OF ____________________A.D. 2025. 
 
      ___________________ 
      PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL 
 
ATTEST: 
_______________ 
CLERK OF COUNCIL 
 

CERTIFICATION OF PUBLICATION 
 

 I, the undersigned Clerk of Council of the City of Canfield, Ohio, hereby certify that the 

foregoing Ordinance was posted in a prominent place at the Municipal Building, Canfield, Ohio for 

seven continuous days, to-wit: _______________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________. 

       ______________________ 
       CLERK OF COUNCIL 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
____________________ 
MUNICIPAL ATTORNEY  
 

 



Introduced by: ________________ 
First Reading: _________________ 

ORDINANCE 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT FOR AN 
EXTRA-TERRITORIAL SEWER AND WATER USER.  (JOSEPH AND DARLENE MACBENN)  

PARCEL NUMBER 26-018-0-005.00-0 AND 26-018-0-006.00-0

Whereas, Section 923.03 of Canfield Code provides for “Extra-Territorial” sewer 
users; and  

Whereas, Section 923.02 of the Canfield Code provides for “Extra-Territorial Water 
Users; and  

Whereas, the Council of the City of Canfield desires to authorize this “Extra-
Territorial” user.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CANFIELD, OHIO: 

Section 1:  Since Parcel 260180005000 and Parcel 260180006000 are in sewer district 
6, its use by Joseph and Darlene MacBenn at 7185 and 7195 W. Akron-Canfield Road is 
approved as an “Extra-Territorial” user for sewer and water according to the agreement 
attached hereto.  

Section 2: Use of said sewer is subject to all permits and fees normally charged for 
permits, assessments and usage of sanitary sewer facilities 

Section 3:  Use of said water is subject to all current fees, rules and regulations 
relating to water service for Extra-Territorial Users.  

Section 4: That this Ordinance and all deliberations relating to the passage of this 
Ordinance were held in open meetings of this Council, all pursuant to Section 121.22 of the 
Ohio Revised Code and Section 3.11 of the Charter of the Municipality of Canfield.  

PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS _____________DAY OF _________________A.D. 2025. 

____________________________ 
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL 

ATTEST: 

____________________ 
CLERK OF COUNCIL  

Certification of Publication 

I, the undersigned Clerk of Council of the City of Canfield, Ohio, hereby certify that 
the foregoing Ordinance was posted in a prominent place at the Municipal Building, Canfield, 
Ohio for seven continuous days, to-wit: _______________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________. 

__________________________ 
CLERK OF COUNCIL 



 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________ 
MUNICIPAL ATTORNEY 









 

 

1 

Introduced By: ____________________ 

First Reading: _____________________ 

 

 

ORDINANCE 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 927 OF 

THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF CANFIELD, OHIO       

(REGARDING WATER RATES FOR 2025) 

 

 

  WHEREAS, the City of Canfield operates a water distribution system, 

purchasing water from the City of Youngstown pursuant to a thirty-year contract; and 

 

  WHEREAS, the Council for the City of Canfield has by Ordinance No. 2022-

59 authorized the purchase of water from Youngstown and to executed a contract for the 

same; and 

 

  WHEREAS, the City of Youngstown is presently supplying water to the City 

of Canfield under an agreement; and 

 

  WHEREAS, the cost of personnel, vehicles, services and supplies is increasing 

 

  WHEREAS, it is necessary to increase water rates now effective October 1, 

2025. 

 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CANFIELD, OHIO: 

 

  Section 1:  Effective with all water billed beginning October 1, 2025, Chapter 

927.01 of the Canfield Code relating to water rates shall be amended to read as follows: 

 

"927.01 Rate Schedule (Beginning October 1, 2025) 

 

(a) Metered Rates 

First 100,000 gal. in any qtr $13.88/1,000 gal. 

Over 100,000 gal. in any qtr $11.21/1,000 gal. 

 

(b) Minimum Rates 

1. 5/8" x 3/4" meter 5,000 gal./qtr. or less $69.40 

2. 1" meter 16,000 gal./qtr. or less $222.08 

3. 1-1/2" meter 21,000 gal./qtr. or less $291.48 

4. 2" meter 37,000 gal./qtr. or less $513.56 

5. 3" meter 65,000 gal./qtr. or less $902.20 

6. 4" meter 114,000 gal./qtr. or less $1,544.94 

7. 6" meter 257,000 gal./qtr. or less $3,147.97 

 

(c) Meter Rates for Extra-Territorial Purchasers 

First 100,000  gal. in any qtr. $16.64/1,000 gal. 

Over 100,000  gal. in any qtr. $13.41/1,000 gal. 

 

(d) Minimum Rates for Extra-Territorial Purchasers 

1. 5/8" x 3/4" meter 5,000 gal./qtr. or less $83.20 

2. 1" meter 16,000 gal./qtr. or less $266.24 



 

 

2 

3. 1-1/2" meter 21,000 gal./qtr. or less $349.44 

4. 2" meter 37,000 gal./qtr. or less $615.68 

5. 3" meter 65,000 gal./qtr. or less $1,081.60 

6. 4" meter 114,000 gal./qtr. or less $1,851.74 

7. 6" meter 257,000 gal./qtr. or less $3,769.37 

 

 

(e) Fixed Monthly Capital Charge 

 A Fixed monthly charge of $3.00 per month ($9.00 per Quarter) shall be assessed 

 upon all water accounts of the system, or single family equivalents on all master 

 metered accounts.  In the case of shared service from a single meter, each unit shall 

 be considered a single family equivalent. 

 

(f) Extra-Territorial Purchasers (Users) 

As used herein and in Section 925.02 of the Codified Ordinances, the terms "Extra-

Territorial Users" and Extra-Territorial Purchasers" shall mean any purchaser of water 

from the City of Canfield which requires delivery of water outside the corporate limits 

of the City of Canfield. 

 

(g) Multiple Family Dwellings 

For Multiple Family Dwellings with central heating and plumbing systems or with 

either, the charge shall be a minimum charge of $69.40 for each family unit each 

quarter. 

 

(h) New Construction 

The semi-annual charge for water service for new construction prior to the installation 

of a meter shall be as follows: 

 

 

Frame Dwelling Construction $200.00 

Masonry Dwelling $250.00 

All Others $300.00 

 

(i)          All metered water purchased for construction vehicles ( tankers, pavers, etc.) shall be  

 charged at the extra-territorial rate plus $200.   

 

(j) Taps 

Water taps shall be charged cost plus twenty-five dollars ($25.00).  In the event the tap 

is across the street, the tap shall be charged at a rate of cost plus fifty dollars ($50.00). 

 

(k) Debt Service Fee 

 A Debt Service fee of $12.75 per Quarter shall be assessed as of October 1, 2025 

 upon all water accounts of the system, or single family equivalents on all master 

 metered accounts.  In the case of shared service from a single meter, each unit shall 

be considered a single family equivalent.  This charge is intended to pay debt 

payments related to Water service and will be adjusted periodically. 

 

Section 2:  Effective with all water billed beginning October 1, 2025, Chapter 

927.03 of the Canfield Code relating to special reading and fees shall be amended to 

read as follows: 

(a)   Definition A “special reading” is a meter reading required or requested at 

a time other than normally scheduled reading time. 

(b)    Fee for Special Reading The charge to read any meter other than normal 

quarterly reading time is fifty dollars ($50.00). 



 

 

3 

(c)    Turn Off/On Fee  If for any reason, service is terminated, there will be a 

fifty dollar ($50.00) turn off fee assessed, and a fifty dollar ($50.00) turn on 

fee assessed, prior to resumption of service. 

 

  

 

  Section 3:  That this Ordinance and all deliberations relating to the passage of 

this ordinance were held in open meetings of this Council, all pursuant to Section 121.22 of 

the Ohio Revised Code and Section 3.11 of the Charter of the Municipality of Canfield. 

 

 

 

PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS ______ DAY OF _____________________ A.D., 2025. 

 

 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

CLERK OF COUNCIL 

 

 

 

 

 

Certification of Publication 

 

  I, the undersigned Clerk of Council of the City of Canfield, Ohio, hereby 

certify that the foregoing Ordinance was posted in a prominent place at the Municipal 

Building, Canfield, Ohio for seven continuous days, to-wit: 

______________________________ 

____________________________________________________________. 

 

       _______________________________ 

       CLERK OF COUNCIL 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

______________________________ 

MUNICIPAL ATTORNEY 







1 
 

MINUTES 
CANFIELD CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
JULY 16, 2025 -5:30 PM. 

 
 The meeting was called to order by Christine Oliver, President of Council, followed by 
the Pledge of Allegiance. The Clerk called the roll to which a quorum responded as follows: Mr. 
Dragish, Mr. Graham, Mr. Neff, Mrs. Oliver and Mr. Tieche.  
 
Staff present: Christine Stack-Clayton, Finance Director; and Tyler Thorn, Zoning Inspector. 
 
Absent: Charles Colucci, Chief of Police and John Rapp, Public Works Superintendent.  
 
  Under PRESENTATIONS & PROCLAMATIONS:   
 
MR. DRAGISH: I do have a small presentation that I’m going to do from the D.C. trip, prior to the 
meeting. It will only be about 5 minutes.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: Are you doing it now? 
 
MR. DRAGISH:  I’ll do it now.  I want to thank everybody for allowing me to go on this trip, it 
was something to see and I got a lot of good information to bring back to the city.  I really do 
appreciate that. With that, I put some slides and information together.   
 
MR. TIECHE: Can everybody see, with him standing in the way?   
 
MR. NEFF: Are we picking it up okay on audio?  
 
MRS. OLIVER: I know that audio wasn’t working last time because when I went home they told 
me they couldn’t hear anything.   
 
CLERK: The audio wasn’t working?  
 
MRS. OLIVER:  It wasn’t last time. I don’t know.   
 
CLERK: Do you mean the last meeting?  
 
MRS. OLIVER: Yes.  
 
CLERK: I transcribe from the minutes from it and I was able to hear it.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: I don’t know.  
 
MR. D’APOLITO: Mayor, you can take the microphone. You can hold it.  



2 
 

MR. DRAGISH: I had the privilege of attending the D.C. fly-in, hosted by the Youngstown Warren 
Regional Chamber, it was June 25th to the 26th, in Washington, D.C.  The two-day event brought 
together business leaders, elected officials, and federal law makers to discuss economic 
development, infrastructure, work force and policy, priority impacting Northeast Ohio.  
 
My attendance was to: 

• Represent the interests o the City of Canfield 

• Strengthen relationships with Federal and State Lawmakers. 

• Explore funding and partnership opportunities for local initiatives 

• Promote Canfield as a desirable location for residential development 

• Advocate for regional infrastructure and workforce development efforts. 
 
We’ve had conversations with the Chamber and Guy Coviello about some of our properties that 
we have that we’re trying to say, hey, we’re a bedroom community and obviously we want 
businesses here too but we are a bedroom community first.  We have the property and we’d 
like to have housing here, if possible.   
 
Day 1- The key engagement speakers.  That morning we flew out of Youngstown Airport and 
flew right here and got dropped right on the stairs of the Library of Congress.  It was really cool 
but it was about 110 degrees.  
 
Day 1-The House of Representatives Focus  
Location:  Library of Congress 
Meetings with Congressman Max Miller, Congressman Michael Rulli, Congressman Dave Taylor 
and Congressman Dave Joyce.  
Policy Briefing by Kevin Courtos VP of Government Affairs at the U.S. Chamber of Commerce. 
Closing Remarks by: Guy Coviello President of the Regional Chamber.  
 
Each one of these people, we were able to meet and talk to and discuss. Each one of them had 
a different layer of where they stand within government.  Each one of those layers, as you pull 
back, that’s kind of different areas of where opportunities to find monies for different things.  It 
all has to work together to get to the end piece to get things into a bill and get things passed. 
So, you can get money, like we’re looking to do. It was very interesting talking to all of them 
and hearing what they had to offer.  
 
There was an evening reception, an hour or two after that. That was hosted by Youngstown 
State University and the Government Affairs and the Lake to River Economic Development 
providing additional networking with public and private sector leaders. Mayor Tito Brown was 
there.  A couple of other local leaders and local people from our area were at this specific 
event.  Kind of a more or less, who came from this area and how we can help each other. That 
is what the reception was for.   
 
    

 



3 
 

DAY 2. Key Engagements & Speakers 
 

• Location: Kennedy Caucus Room, which was very, very cool. Outside of that 
room, when you watch the news they have that big open area, it’s kind of where 
everything is at.  It’s an office right inside of there.  It was cool to be there and a 
part of it.   

• Remarks from Senator Bernie Moreno and Senator Jon Husted highlighting 
infrastructure modernization and economic revitalization. Both Bernie Moreno 
and Jon Husted spoke.  I will say, I’ve never really heard a lot from Bernie 
Moreno other than his ad campaign but he is a very good speaker.  He’s trying to 
persuade a lot of good things for this area.  He’s really pushing for Ohio.  He’s 
really good person. I think we should try to get to know him a little bit more.  Jon 
Husted also, both of them, I was introduced to their people that are under them 
and we have communications with them. We have somebody to call and talk to 
see if we need to get something through, if we need to.  The proper paperwork 
and the proper way to do things is to go through these channels. If you don’t go 
through these channels, it doesn’t get done.  That was sponsored by Riviera 
Creek.  

 
What I Gained From The Event. 

  

• Direct Access to Lawmaker. Built Relationships with key congressional leaders to 
discuss Canfield’s needs and future opportunities. 

• Regional Strategy Alignment. Identified ways Canfield can align with Regional 
Projects to attract funding for water and road infrastructure plus workforce 
initiatives. They’re really trying to push the workforce. There are several 
businesses that they are trying to get into Ohio. There is not enough people to 
work.  They’re pushing that.   

• Promotion of Canfield as a Strategic Regional Hub. I personally promoted 
Canfield as an ideal bedroom community. Emphasizing our safety, schools and 
proximity to regional employers. I made it clear that we have available property 
and residential development and we’re well positioned to attract executive and 
professionals relocating to the area.  That was specifically said at each 
engagement that we had. I stood and represented Canfield letting them know 
that, that’s why we were here.   

• Workforce Development Insight.  Learned about key federal and state programs 
that can assist with job creation and skill building-especially beneficial as we 
grow locally. There were certain officials that I was trying to talk to, to see trying 
to get federal and state backed programs to see if we can find a way to get water 
infrastructure from where it is now to Leffingwell, thru federal dollars, instead of 
us. Obviously, we can’t afford to spend 10 million dollars. If there are monies out 
there. That was the initiative. 
   



4 
 

Recommendation for Future Participation:  I strongly recommend continued attendance at CD 
Fly-Ins and similar Regional/National Leadership summits. They provide: 
 

• Critical face time with decision-makers who impact local funding and economic 
support. 

• A Platform to share Canfield’s story and strategic advantages. 

• Opportunities to align with Regional efforts and influence multi-community 
projects. 

• Investment Justification- The value derived from networking, visibility and insight 
far exceeds the travel investment. Participation in events like this strengthens 
Canfield’s position in Regional and Federal conversations that directly impact our 
city’s future.   

Again, I want to thank you for your support in enabling me to represent Canfield in Washington.  
These trips are not only symbolic-they’re strategic. Relationship-driven opportunities that help 
position our city for grown, investment, and greater recognition. 
 
I look forward to continuing to advocate for Canfield’s place as a leading community in the 
Mahoning Valley.  Thank you.   
 

Under MINUTES, the Minutes of the Regular Meeting on June 18, 2025 were approved 
as presented.   
 
  Under READING OF COMMUNICATIONS, there was none.  
 
  Under REPORTS of Committees, Boards, Mayor’s Report, City Manager, Finance 
Director, Chief of Police, Zoning Inspector and Public Works Superintendent. 
 
MR. TIECHE: I have no report.  
 
MR. NEFF:  We had a Planning & Zoning Meeting. I think I’ll let Tyler cover that when he gives 
his report. There were several items and we set a couple of public hearings.  I’ll let our zoning 
inspector report.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: Thank you. Mayor Dragish. 
 
MR. DRAGISH: I actually have 2 monthly statements to council. Fines and monies collected and 
received, I have one for $180.01 and $366.01.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: Wait, now do we have two pennies? 
 
MR. DRAGISH: Technically, they’re separate.  It’s the same penny.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: I just wanted to check.  
 



5 
 

MR. DRAGISH: It’s the same penny. 
 
MRS. OLIVER: Mr. Graham. 
 
MR. GRAHAM: Design Review, we met July 1st. There were a number of items that were 
approved.   A fence at 188 Talsman, a fence and deck also on Talsman Drive and a shed on E. 
Main Street.  They were all compliant with zoning.  No issues.  They were all approved.  
 
MR. DRAGISH: I did have a question. Was there a sign not approved? 
 
MRS. OLIVER: Correct. I saw something on social media.  
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO: I can explain that.  Our Ordinance does not allow changeable copy signs 
around the Village Green.  We allow them in other districts.  The original thought was, we didn’t 
want a proliferation of digital signs around the Green.  We granted an adjustment for the 
township a public entity providing public notice, etc.  This was a private entity coming forth 
with a small LED sign. Based on the Ordinance and purpose of the restriction, it was not 
approved.   
 
MR. DRAGISH: I wasn’t questioning it. I didn’t know that it was digital.   
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO: We made a very clear record of the reasoning and I saw a post on Facebook 
saying, no reason given.  Whether you agree with that or not. We could consider amending the 
ordinance to provide for smaller LED signs or whatever.  Our law is the law.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: They put that is was approved but when it went before the other, it wasn’t 
approved.  
 
ZONING INSPECTOR: The Design Review Board approved the design; which was last month.  
Then it went to Planning & Zoning to grant a variance to allow it to actually be done.  So, 
Planning & Zoning did not approve it but Design Review did.  That’s what that was.  
 
MR. TIECHE: A question. Why would that go to Design before Planning & Zoning? 
 
ZONING INSPECTOR: It was just the schedule of the meetings.   
 
MR. TIECHE: I guess my question is, why have it on the agenda? 
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO: I would allow them to move faster. They would have to wait a month. 
 
MR. TIECHE: But, had you had it at the Planning Meeting, it already would have gotten a No and 
you wouldn’t have had the conflict of one is approved and one didn’t.  
 



6 
 

MRS. OLIVER: That’s what the big fuss was.  Mr. Graham, at Design Review did they have it that 
it was going to be LED? 
 
MR. GRAHAM: Yes. Technically, Design Review could have declined it then. If they were aware 
of, they should have been.  
 
ZONING INSPECTOR: It has to go to both committees anyway due to the fact that it’s in the 
Design Review District and it needs a variance. So, it didn’t matter which committee it went to 
first.  It needed approval from both anyway.   
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO: Design Review doesn’t have the authority to grant an adjustment.   
 
MR. NEFF: I’d like to say, the vote was 3 to 2. I voted to approve it.  I think we should address it 
and come up with a discussion of what size signs would be allowed in the historical district.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: What sign company was doing the sign? 
 
CLERK: Innersource.   
 
MR. DRAGISH: I think the key to this whole thing was originally around that historical Green 
area we weren’t going to allow for that.  I understand what you’re saying, Mr. Neff. It’s just not 
allowed there. To go forward, we’re looking at smaller ones, it doesn’t make sense. If they’re 
not allowed in that particular area. 
 
MR. NEFF: We want to do what’s good for business.  We’ve always gotten the rap that we’re 
not very attentive and supportive of businesses. So, I think that it’s something that should be 
discussed.  In Planning & Zoning we had discussion, I don’t think this is inappropriate to bring 
up but it was at the end of the meeting, off the record that there is a resentment that Planning 
& Zoning can make a decision and be overridden by Council.  That’s the way the city works.   
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO: Not on adjustments. On certain things.   
 
MR. NEFF: I think on Design Review, too.  It’s been brought up. I think we need to be aware of it 
and think about it when we address some of the things that we’d like to see changed in our 
ordinances.  The Odd Fellows that want this display are a non-profit. They’re a philanthropic 
organization.   
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO: They have for profit tenants.  I think we can draw a distinction between a 
public entity and private entity.  Non-profits, I don’t like that distinction in terms of whether it 
has enough merit for drawing the line.  The precedent is dangerous here as the ordinance 
currently reads. If we were to grant that adjustment, then Farmers, just go around the Green 
every 200 feet you could have a digital sign.  That’s what our ordinance would allow if we start 
granting adjustments.   
 



7 
 

ZONING INSPECTOR: As you said, if they wanted to, they could ask for an adjustment on the 
200 feet.   
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO: It’s a slippery slope.  I think if we draw a distinction between a public entity 
like the township hall and hold that line.  I don’t think that’s the case with that building.   
 
MR. TIECHE: Would you hold that line if the other 2 churches around the Green were to ask for 
something like that?  
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO: No, it’s a public entity.  That’s about it, right there, in my opinion.  The City 
of Canfield could put a sign out there because we’re not subject to our own zoning.  
 
MR. NEFF:  I think that’s very inappropriate.  
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO: I’m not advocating it. I’m jus telling you that’s the law.   
 
MR. NEFF: I know. I think that when we do, when the city finally puts digital signs into we’re 
hoping they can go on the Green to help communicate to the public and we say, we’re not 
subject to our own ordinances.  
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO: We’re not allowed to distinguish based on content of the speech for signs. 
The (inaudible) we do have is to do what we just did, in my opinion. If council or planning wants 
to take a look at that ordinance and make some changes, then we do that.   
 
MR. NEFF: If the Odd Fellows would like to come to council and ask for a variance from 
council….. 
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO:  Planning & Zoning grants variances, not council.   
 
MR. NEFF: Once Planning & Zoning makes a decision, can it be readdressed? 
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO: The Mahoning County Court of Common Pleas.   
 
MR. NEFF: So, you can’t go back to the same entity.  
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO: Once a year.  You can bring that issue back in a year.   
 
MR. NEFF: The Odd Fellows have a 150-year anniversary and that’s what they were pushing for, 
to get something up there.  
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO: Also, keep in mind, the owner didn’t appear here.  Nobody advocated for 
that sign, other than the sign manufacturer.  Who couldn’t state a position for what makes it 
unique, why was this different than what our ordinance required.  Maybe, it would have been 



8 
 

helpful, if the owner would have been here or a representative of the owner. But they chose 
not to appear.   
 
MR. NEFF:  Right. So, just to be on the record, if you look at the sign that they have now, it is 
perpendicular to the road, so it’s a two-sided sign.  What they were proposing was 
approximately the same size, I believe but it was going to be a one-sided sign. That was sort of 
interesting and it was going to be back against the building a little bit farther.   
 
ZONING INSPECTOR: They can still get a sign as long as they drop off the LED.   
 
MR. NEFF: Right.  
 
ZONING INSPECTOR: They can come back to Design Review and they could approve the design 
of it.  They just need to drop off the electronic.   
 
MR. NEFF: Because this discussion was happening with various people in the public, somebody 
said that our ordinance does not prohibit digital signs inside the building, in a window facing 
out.  
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO: We have window signage ordinances, it’s not content based, so probably an 
OPEN sign or LOTTERY, that would probably be allowed. It can’t cover a certain percentage of 
the window.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: Like OPEN or CLOSED, that kind of thing.  
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO: Or whatever. Like any other sign, they can have in the window from the 
inside.   
 
ZONING INSPECTOR: 75% cannot be covered.  
 
MR. NEFF: 75% cannot be covered.  
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO: That’s a police safety issue. Like a robbery of a business, we can’t have our 
police not seeing through that window.   
 
MR. NEFF: Okay. Great discussion. Thank you.  
 
MR. TIECHE: Can I ask a question to the members of council.   Is council satisfied with the 
language of that ordinance or would you want to consider having some discussion whether we 
want to change the ordinance?  That’s council’s prerogative.  
 
MR. DRAGISH: I was always under the impression that the Green was the Green. I never looked 
at it as being a digital space. Other than Wi-Fi.  
 



9 
 

MRS. OLIVER: I guess what I would say to that is, I wouldn’t want to see digital signs all around 
the Green, lighting up the whole place.  It takes away from what Canfield has always been.  That 
charm that we have. It would be like driving down a Las Vegas strip if you’re lighting up 
everywhere. I don’t think our residents would like that.  To me, it takes away from what 
Canfield has always been.  That’s my personal opinion.  
 
MR. NEFF: Our Ordinance now requires the sign after the sun goes down to dim by 90%. So, 
theoretically, that is one thing our zoning inspector will have to watch.  The sign dims down, 
we’ve had some issues.  I would be in favor of letting council meet with Design Review. Some 
communities want the same type of sign look, like a wood sign with certain fonts recognized 
and be able to be used and so forth.  It gives the community a very unique look.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: I know Design Review has been looking at that.   
 
MR. D’APOLITO: My first thought is, with the Memorial at that end, I think it would be 
inappropriate to have flashing signs.  
 
MR. DRAGISH: I agree. 
 
MR. NEFF: It’s in the ordinance that digital signs are not allowed to flash.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: Mr. Graham, any thoughts? 
 
MR. GRAHAM: I have a number of thoughts. You start to think it through but then you have 
digital signs and you’re granting variances to make them larger, that they don’t have to turn off 
at a certain time. It’s a discussion. You have to think things through before you move forward. 
To your point, Madam President, I wouldn’t want to see a lot of that around our Green.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: It would take away from the pavilion and the clock.   
 
MR. DRAGISH: I think we’ve done such a nice job of turning the green around and making it 
very friendly and welcoming and especially with the new plaza.  As we’ve said before, a large 
portion of the Green is not businesses, it’s churches. To me, it just doesn’t make sense around 
the Green.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: I like where you moved the facility.  You can’t see it. That’s such a better place.  
 
MR. D’APOLITO: I said, I’d be open-minded about it. 
 
MRS. OLIVER: That is a much better place. I call it the facility. When you come through, you 
don’t even see it.   
 
MR. DRAGISH: We need some arrows pointing at it.  
 



10 
 

MR. GRAHAM: Are you going to put a digital sign there, David? 
 
MRS. OLIVER: Bravo to where you moved it to.  It’s so much better. Anymore on that before I 
give my report?  Hearing none.  I have the fire report. For June there were 234 calls, 115 
transports, we provided 8 mutual aid and we received 2. We had a $60,000 fire loss. It was a 
lightning strike on Canfield Road.  Mr. D’Apolito will you be doing Mr. Rapp’s report? 
 
MR. D’APOLITO: I’m going to do Mr. Rapp’s and Chief Colucci’s.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: I’ll do everyone and save you for last.  With that being said, our Finance Director, 
Mrs. Clayton.  
 
FINANCE DIRECTOR:  Thank you. I’ve posted the city’s check register’s for June on the city’s 
website.  We recently renewed our property, liability and vehicle and cyber insurance, as of July 
1st. Our total premium decreased $2,200 from last year.  Some parts were up and some were 
down.  
 
MR. DRAGISH: Interesting. 
 
MRS. OLIVER: Thank you.  Our Zoning Inspector, Mr. Thorn.  
 
ZONING INSPECTOR:  Thank you, Mrs. Oliver.  For July, we had 21 permits that we issued, so far. 
Total permits issued year to date is 92. Next month we have one public hearing set for August 
14th, for a resident receiving an adjustment. He wants to make his shed bigger and currently it 
doesn’t conform with our ordinance. So, it’s a change for a non-conforming use. Certified mail 
was sent out this week for that to all the neighbors.  Aside from our sign at our Planning & 
Zoning Meeting we had an addition to a home on Fairview that was approved and an addition 
to a garage on Montgomery Court that was approved.  That’s all I have.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: Thank you. Our Clerk, Mrs. Bernat. 
 
CLERK:  Thank you. We are going to be having some openings on Boards and Commissions at 
the end of this year. I posted the application on our website. There will be 3 openings on the 
Parks Board and 1 on Planning & Zoning.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: Are these people termed out? 
 
CLERK: Yes.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: Thank you. Atty. Fortunato.  
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO: No report. I’ll be happy to explain the temporary sign ordinance.   
 



11 
 

MRS. OLIVER: I’m going to say, our City Manager, Mr. D’Apolito, Public Works Superintendent, 
Mr. Rapp and our Police Chief, Chief Colucci.  
 
MR. D’APOLITO:  I’m going to give all 3 and then you tell me which is which. (Laughter) 
 
On behalf of Mr. Rapp- Crack sealing is complete for this year. The back-up generator (lift 
station) behind Giant Eagle is nearing completion. Water meter replacements continue.  We are 
repairing pot holes with hot patch.  That is ongoing. The rock-climbing wall that was donated by 
the township to us has been installed at Fair Park. It looks fantastic.  The last two leaf boxes 
rehabilitation has been completed.   
 
I’m going to give my report because it’s coincidental with the rock-climbing wall.  First of all, the 
4th of July Parade, it went off without a hitch. Such a great job was done by our Police 
Department and our Public Works Department.  Public Works getting prepared and ready for 
the parade and then after the parade. By 3:00pm you have no idea that all those people were 
here.  What a great job they did.  The police department did a great job keeping everyone safe. 
It was great atmosphere, great weather, it was a great day. What I wanted to talk about was 
the Chief and I had some meetings with the school superintendent and one of the Trustees 
from the Township regarding funding for the school resource officers.  Also, Mr. Fortunato and I 
met with another Trustee as well as some representatives from the prosecutor’s office on 
different issues, funding issues we have with the township as well as the Fire Board. The whole 
point is, it’s not about the particulars, it’s about the relationship with the township. I think it’s 
growing and headed in a positive direction. I appreciate the willingness to meet and talk as 
frequently as we do. I just think that good things are going to come from that moving forward.   
 
Finally, I will give the Chief’s report.  I had to promise him that I would read this word for word.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: Before you give the Chief’s report can I ask you a question about the parade.  I 
saw on social media, people were asking why we don’t have clowns in our parade. This was all 
over the place, that there used to be clowns and why don’t we have them. Some people 
thought all the clowns were gone and other people said they were in Lake Milton at their 
parade.  
 
MR. D’APOLITO: That would be the parade committee. I really don’t know.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: So, basically, they have the opportunity to be in the parade, they just didn’t 
register for the parade.  
 
MR. D’APOLITO: I don’t think we have a ban on clowns.  
 
MR. GRAHAM: That’s a debatable thing.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: That’s why I’m asking.   
 



12 
 

MR. DRAGISH: We used to have those kids going around with the clown masks.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: That’s why I’m asking. Some people felt that we’re not allowed to have clowns in 
the parade.  I’m thinking, the reason for that is, they didn’t register to be in the parade.  That’s 
all I needed to know. I thank you for that. Please go on.  
 
MR. D’APOLITO: I’m going to read this word for word.   
 
I want to express my sincere gratitude to everyone that came together to celebrate the 
Canfield 4th of July Parade 2025 addition. It was truly a unique year for the parade as we had 
only 2 returning members on the committee.  As many of you know, it takes a significant 
amount of time, dedication and hard work to make this event a success.  Our parade is just as 
important to Canfield as the Macy’s Thanksgiving Day parade is to New York City.  There is no 
doubt that Canfield deeply respects and loves our 4th of July celebration.  
 
 Canfield Police Department and City Staff are truly blessed to serve such an amazing 
community.  This year, members of the Canfield Police Department accepted the challenge of 
facilitating the parade.  I’m humbled to work with such an incredible group, who every 4th of 
July sacrificed time with their families to ensure all safety precautions are in place to host the 
Canfield 4th of July, Firecracker Foot Race for youths and adults.  With no break between 
events, all officers quickly move from post to post, ensuring the appropriate streets are blocked 
off while allowing for safe foot races and maintaining existing pedestrian and vehicular travel.  
By the time the last adult runner crosses the finish line, our team transitions into parade mode. 
Following the parade, our officers begin opening roadways and engaging with our community 
for the kids’ games and other events on the green.  For all events, the safety of all participants 
and spectators is our number one priority.  
 
Please keep in mind that not only do these officers work the parade and other events, but the 
majority of them also work their regularly scheduled shifts on July 3rd, 4th and 5th.  
 
Our City Manager, David D’Apolito, and Public Works Superintendent, John Rapp, were 
instrumental in our safety plan by ensuring Street Department trucks blocked major 
intersecting points of the parade.  Sergeant Kyle Young and his bomb-sniffing canine partner, 
Oakley, were deployed early in the morning, searching for any suspicious packages along the 
parade route, while Officers Cover and Lamping flew Canfield PD drones, ensuring safety for all.  
Every police and auxiliary officer were deployed to assist with all safety measures.   
 
Regarding the parade and the months leading up to it, I must recognize the following Canfield 
Police Officers who formed the new committee/team coordinating the parade: Assistant Chief 
Scott Weamer, Lieutenant Cris Ruiz, and Detective Scott Bennett shared the many 
responsibilities for all aspects of our parade. 
 
It is imperative to name Detective Sergeant Josh Wells as the Most Valuable Player of the 2025 
Canfield Fourth of July Events. Having been a prior member of the Fourth of July Committee, 



13 
 

Josh recognized the demands our team was facing and unselfishly stepped up and carried the 
bulk of all assignments our team shared. Please understand, Josh is a husband, father, and 
police officer, and without being asked to do so, he essentially became the 2025 Fourth of July 
Parade Committee Chairperson.  Josh is an amazing person who we should all be proud to say is 
an instrumental member of our incredible team.   
 
It shall be noted, our goal was to create a new Fourth of July Committee for future parades. Our 
goal was achieved. The community stepped up and we now have several new members that 
will carry the Canfield tradition forward for many years to come.  We are honored to announce 
the 2026 Canfield Fourth of July Parade Chairperson, Kimberly Grossman.  
 
Respectfully,  
 
Chuck Colucci 
 
MRS. OLIVER: They did an amazing, amazing, job.  
 
MR. D’APOLITO: It was an amazing day. I forgot, they did put the trucks up there, I thought It 
was just a better way to prevent any access.  People really seemed to like it.   
 
MR. DRAGISH: Josh got me to where I needed to be on time.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: I can proudly say, I made it through the whole parade without running out of 
candy this year.  I learned last year, when you round that bend, you don’t realize how many 
people are right there.  This year, we were ready.  Thank you to everybody that made it such a 
beautiful parade.  
 
MR. TIECHE: I have a question. I don’t know if it would go to David or John. Have we had 
contact meeting with our paving contractor to determine when they’re going to start paving? 
 
MR. D’APOLITO: We have a preconstruction meeting set for next week.  Mr. Graham also asked 
me that.  
 
MR. TIECHE: Okay. Thank you.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: Council any questions on reports? Hearing none.  
 
  Under Questions on Reports. 
 
MR. NEFF: The generator that you mentioned that is being worked on, is that a pump station to 
pump water?    
 
MR. TIECHE: Sewage.  
 



14 
 

MR. D’APOLITO: It’s a lift station.   
 
MR. NEFF: Thank you.   
 
  Under PERSONS DESIRING TO APPEAR BEFORE COUNCIL, there were none.  
 
  Under OLD BUSINESS, there was none.  
 
  Under NEW BUSINESS: 
 
ITEM A:  An Ordinance Amending the Sign Regulations of the City of Canfield.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: As per the provisions of Section 4.05 of the Charter of the City of Canfield, I move 
that Council dispense with the requirement of a full reading of the proposed Ordinance and 
authorize reading by title only.  
 
MR. DRAGISH: Second.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:   5 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Motion passes.  
 
MR. TIECHE: Madam Chairman, I have an Ordinance Amending the Sign Regulations of the City 
of Canfield. This constitutes first reading.  
 
CLERK: That will be set for a public hearing on September 3rd @ 5:30pm.   
 
ITEM B:  An Ordinance Authorizing the City Manager to Enter Into An Agreement for Leaf 
Pick-Up. 
 
MRS. OLIVER:  As per the provisions of Section 4.05 of the Charter of the City of Canfield, I move 
that Council dispense with the requirement of two readings of the proposed Ordinance and 
authorize adoption of the same upon its first reading.   
 
MR. NEFF: Second.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:   5 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Motion passes. 
 
MRS. OLIVER: As per the provisions of Section 4.05 of the Charter of the City of Canfield, I move 
that Council dispense with the requirement of a full reading and authorize reading by title only.  
 
MR. DRAGISH: Second  



15 
 

 
    ROLL CALL ON MOTION:   5 Votes-Yes  
          0 Votes-No  
          Motion passes. 
 
MR. DRAGISH:  I have an Ordinance Authorizing the City Manager to Enter Into An Agreement 
for Leaf Pick-Up.  I move for passage.  
 
MR. TIECHE: Second.  
 
MRS. OLIVER:  Do we have anything that we need to discuss, Mr. D’Apolito. 
 
MR. D’APOLITO:  What we have here is the leaf pick-up agreement. We had a 2-year agreement 
and now it’s 5.  It went out to bid. We only had one bidder.  I think it’s very notable that the 
increase is only 5%. It’s not a 5% per year, it’s a one-time 5%.  Except for the last year, it’s 10%.  
I think it’s very beneficial for the city.  
 
MR. DRAGISH: Sounds good.   
 
   ROLL CALL ON ORDINANCE:   5 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Ordinance passes.  
         Ordinance 2025-16. 
 
ITEM C:  An Ordinance Approving the Replat of MCCTC Plat No. 1, Part of Outlot 75 on N. 
Palmyra Road by Mahoning County Career and Technical Center.  
 
MRS. OLIVER:  As per the provisions of Section 4.05 of the Charter of the City of Canfield, I move 
that Council dispense with the requirement of two readings of the proposed Ordinance and 
authorize adoption of the same upon its first reading 
 
MR. GRAHAM: Second.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:   5 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Motion passes. 
 
MRS. OLIVER: As per the provisions of Section 4.05 of the Charter of the City of Canfield, I move 
that Council dispense with the requirement of a full reading of the proposed Ordinance and 
authorize reading by title only.  
 
MR. DRAGISH: Second.  
 



16 
 

   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:   5 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Motion passes. 
 
MR. GRAHAM: Madam President, I have an Ordinance Approving the Replat of MCCTC Plat No. 
1, Part of Outlot 75 on N. Palmyra Road by Mahoning County Career and Technical Center.  I 
move for passage.   
 
MR. DRAGISH: second.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: Do we want Mr. D’Apolito or Atty Fortunato to explain this? 
 
MR. D’APOLITO: This involves the construction of the new Wellness Center being constructed at 
MCCTC.  They want to have a separate address for that building.   
 
MR. GRAHAM: So, it sits on its own specific parcel? 
 
MR. D’APOLITO: Yes.  
 
ZONING INSPECTOR: It’s due to Columbia Gas and the hook-ups for utilities. 
 
MR. DRAGISH: They get billed separately.  
 
ZONING INSPECTOR: They get billed separately.   
 
MRS. OLIVER: I had a second by Mayor Dragish. 
 
   ROLL CALL ON ORDINANCE:   5 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Ordinance passes  
         Ordinance 2025-17. 
 
MRS. OLIVER: Any public comments?  
 
  Under COUNCIL COMMENTS, there were none.  
 
 
MRS. OLIVER: Do I have a Motion to adjourn? 
 
MR. NEFF: So, moved.  
 
MR. DRAGISH:  Can I make a comment?  I want to say thank you to the police department for 
the great job that they did for the 4th of July.  I know it’s crazy because you sit there and you see 
this influx of people coming into our city and they make it look so easy and I know it’s not as 



17 
 

easy as it looks but they make it look very easy. Again, kudos to them. A special thanks to 
Farmer’s National Bank for hosting such a great breakfast. Hopefully, they continue to do that 
every year.  It was very nice. I appreciate it.   
 
MR. GRAHAM: It was nice.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: Before we adjourn the meeting, Mr. D’Apolito, what is your approximation of 
how many people were there?   
 
MR. D’APOLITO: I would uneducatedly guess around 10,000. That would be a very uneducated 
guess.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: So, we had a motion to adjourn. Do I have a second. 
 
MR. DRAGISH: Second.  
 
MRS. OLIVER: We are adjourned.   
 
 
       _____________________________ 
       PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________ 
CLERK OF COUNCIL  


	Agenda
	Ordinance for Broker Services
	Agreement for Broker Services
	Ordinance Natural Gas Aggregation
	Supporting Documents
	Ordinance Surplus Property
	Ordinance for Extra-Territorial User
	Agreement for Extra-Territorial User
	Ordinance Amend Water Rates
	Supporting Document
	7-16-2025 Minutes



